
Topeka Worth Saving Endangered Properties List, 2015 

2015 is the second year for the Topeka Worth Saving Endangered Properties List. The purpose 
of  this program  is  to provide  the  citizens of  Topeka  the opportunity  to  voice  their  concerns 
regarding the future of Topeka’s architectural and cultural heritage. This program is intended to 
be  a  vehicle  for  Topeka’s  citizens  to  call  attention  to  Topeka’s  most  threatened  historic 
resources,  and  further,  to  provide  the means  to  communicate  their  concerns  to  our  city’s 
government, business, and civic leaders. 
 
Properties  identified by this  list may  include a wide variety of structures, such as government 
buildings,  private  and  individual  homes,  churches,  commercial  buildings,  and  community 
schools, all spanning the architectural history of our city and nation. All of these properties are 
also threatened by neglect, insufficient funds, public policy, or insensitive development. 
 
Topeka Worth Saving is not a commemorative or celebratory  list, though the unveiling of the 
list draws much‐needed awareness to threatened historic sites across our city. Communication 
of this  list to the broader public may raise local awareness of the threats facing these icons of 
our history, and facilitate the generation of resources necessary to address these threats. While 
we expect many of these properties identified as endangered to be saved or rehabilitated, the 
announcement of the list acknowledges there is still much work to be done. 
 
Nominations to the Topeka Worth Saving Endangered Properties List are accepted throughout 
the  year.  The  following  pages  represent  the  collective  list  of  endangered  properties,  as 
nominated by the citizens of Topeka, thus far in in 2015.  

   



Kansas Department of Labor White House, 427 SW Topeka Blvd. – This property 
was  locally  known  as  the 
"Department  of  Labor  White 
House." The home was a white 
wood‐frame  multistory  Free 
Classic Queen Anne‐style house 
with  turret  and  wrap‐around 
porch,  originally  built  circa 
1900.  The  home  featured  a 
hipped  roof,  with  lower  cross 
gables.  On  the  front  façade, 
there was  a  small  second‐story 
balcony,  adjacent  to  a  turret 
with bay windows and egg‐and‐
dart molding  in the gable ends, 
with  swag  decoration  at  frieze 
level.  To  the  rear  of  the  home 

was an enclosed  second‐story  sleeping porch. The  front porch wrapped around  the east and 
south  facades,  with  a  gabled  entrance  facing  SW  Topeka  Blvd.    The  front  porch  featured 
wooden Tuscan columns set on heavy stone piers. The foundation of the home was constructed 
a limestone. During the 1950s, the lap siding of the home was covered with asbestos siding. The 
interior contained impressive hardwood and pine floors, built‐ins, and a substantial fireplace. 
 
According to the Shawnee County Historical Society "Historic Bulletin #40," this house was the 
residence of M.F. Southwick, President of Citizen State Bank. He also established the Southwick 
Auto Supply Company.  It  is believed the house  later served as a boarding home  in the 1940s, 
and  then  a  nursing  home,  before  it was  acquired  by  the  Kansas  Dept.  of  Labor.  The  1896 
Sanborn is the first to cover this block, but the original date of construction of this home is not 
shown. The 2.5‐story wood‐frame house first appears on the 1913 Sanborn. The building is fine 
example of the large residential homes constructed for Topeka's elite along Topeka Blvd, prior 
to the development of Westboro. 
 
 

   



AT&SF Patterns Shop & Laboratory, 505 NE Crane Street – This  limestone structure 

was  constructed  in  1885  as  the 

Atchison,  Topeka,  &  the  Santa  Fe 

Railroad Patterns Shop and Laboratory. 

The structure later served as the AT&SF 

payroll  office,  complete  with  a  vault 

room  on  the  interior.  It  has  2  floors, 

with  a  security  guard walk  around  the 

perimeter  of  the  2nd  story.  The 

Burlington  North  Santa  Fe  Railroad 

currently uses  the building  for  storage 

and  work  shop  for  the  signal  and 

structures  department.  The  bottom 

floor  is all that  is used due to the poor conditions of the 2nd floor. The building has not undergone any 

significant maintenance  or  repairs  in many  years,  but  has  nonetheless  stood  in  remarkably  strong 

condition.  

 

 


